
Date Published:27 August 2019     

Meeting papers

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee

Wednesday 4 September 2019 at 1.30 pm

The Growth Hub - The Growth Hub, Oxstalls 
Campus, Oxstalls Lane, Gloucester



    

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 4 September 2019 at 1.30 pm

The Growth Hub - The Growth Hub, Oxstalls Campus, Oxstalls 
Lane, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Sophie Benfield

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meetings held on 20 March 2019.

Chair

4  UNDERSTANDING THE GFIRST LEP (Pages 7 - 18)

The Committee to receive a report on the work and activities of the GFirst 
LEP, including an example of a project cycle.

Members to use this item to decide how to improve its scrutiny of the LEP 
going forward.

David Owen

5  LOCAL INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY (Pages 19 - 20)

The Committee to consider a report on the Local Industrial Strategy.

David Owen

6  DIRECTOR'S REPORT (Pages 21 - 32)

Colin Chick, Strategic Adviser (Communities & Infrastructure) to update 

Colin Chick



    

the Committee on current issues (to include Quarter 1 2019/20 
performance data).

7  WORK PLAN (Pages 33 - 34)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration at 
future meetings. (Work plan attached).

Chair

8  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of future meetings:

ADDITIONAL: 18 September 2019 (joint meeting with Environment 
Scrutiny Committee)
30 October 2019
20 November 2019
26 February 2020
18 March 2020

Chair

Membership –  Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair), 
Cllr Stephen Davies, Cllr Ben Evans, Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair), Cllr Klara Sudbury and 
Cllr Sajid Patel Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Paul McCloskey, Cllr Jim Dewey, Cllr John Murphy and Cllr 
Gina Blomefield

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 
held on Wednesday 20 March 2019 commencing at 2.00 pm at the Cabinet Suite - Shire 
Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Stephen Davies
Cllr Kate Haigh

Cllr Klara Sudbury
Cllr Paul McCloskey
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Phil Awford

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Sajid Patel, Joe Harris, Bruce Hogan and Martin 
Whiteside.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings held on both 5 September 2018 and 14 February 2019 
were approved and signed by the Chair.

6. BREXIT 

6.1 There was a request from the Chair to change the running order of the 
agenda, therefore item 6 ‘Brexit’ was taken first.

6.2 Over the past year, several members of the Committee have expressed 
concern over the lack of information available on how the County might be 
preparing for the impact on the economic climate of Gloucestershire, 
following the outcome of Brexit.

6.3 The Chair opened the item by seeking a view from the Chair of the Economic 
Growth Joint Committee, Cllr Stowe.

6.4 Members were advised that at the moment, the uncertainty surrounding 
Brexit means they did not have enough information to be able to start 
preparation works. It was stressed that historically, the right decision had 
been taken by the Joint Committee to not ‘waste’ public resources on 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

preparing for something that was constantly changing. To date, it remained 
extremely difficult to know how best to prepare.

6.5 The Committee were informed that preparations are being considered by the 
Gloucestershire Local Resilience Forum through risk discussions.

6.6 Cllr Stowe shared his frustrations with the Committee but reiterated that 
before the Joint Committee could begin any preparation works, they needed 
to be clear about what they were preparing for.

6.7 The Chair next invited Deputy Chief Executive of the GFirst LEP, Dev 
Chakraborty, to give an update on the LEP’s local activities relating to Brexit.

6.8 Members heard there is a general feeling of frustration and unease with local 
businesses at the moment, again due to the unclear picture and being 
unable to begin preparations.

6.9 A recent report from Deloitte surveyed 110 Chief Financial Officers whose 
organisations had a combined value of £390 billion. The results showed 
business confidence at a 10 year low, with 80% saying that the business 
enviroment would be worse as a result of Brexit. Their current focus was 
cutting costs, not recruiting and boosting cash flow.

6.10 The British Chamber of Commerce have produced a ‘Business Brexit Risk 
Register’. This reflected a list of concerns from businesses and a RAG rating 
on each as to whether the current Brexit proposals solved those issues. The 
Committee heard that the majority of these concerns remained ‘red-rated’.

6.11 The LEP have carried out a number of surveys through the Growth Hub 
which the Committee were informed have reflected some of the following 
views:

How will Brexit impact your business?
 It already has: increased costs, reduced profits, volatile currency, 

availability of labour,
 Increased admin and red tape for EU trading
 Reduced customer spending
 Availability of imports
 No idea
 Brexit will have less impact than the current uncertainty is having
 Potential closure of business

Are you currently doing anything to prepare?
 Relocate/reregister in EU
 Stockpiling
 Refocus on overseas markets
 Selling more to UK
 Nothing

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Top rated business priorities right now:
 Cash flow
 Innovation
 Risk Management (Currency)
 Sourcing UK Products
 Stockpiling

6.12 Members were advised that the gov.uk website contains a good amount of 
information for businesses. The page also has a tool where users can filter 
their business sector and needs so they only receive relevant information for 
their business.

6.13 It was also pointed out that businesses are facing challenges other than 
Brexit at the moment, particularly in the manufacturing industry.

6.14 Members suggested that any helpful information released from Government 
should be signed posted by GCC and the LEP to help businesses as much 
as possible.

5. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE UPDATE 

5.1 Cllr Stowe, Chair of the Economic Growth Joint Committee gave a brief 
overview of the morning meeting. Scrutiny Committee members were invited 
to attend Joint Committee meetings in an observer capacity. Please refer to 
the link below to view the agenda and supporting documents for the 
Economic Growth Joint Committee meeting held on the morning of 20 March 
2019:

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=
9093&Ver=4

5.2 The Committee received a document from the GFirst LEP: ‘Gloucestershire 
Sustainable Energy Strategy’. Members were informed that the LEP were 
seeking feedback on the strategy and that there will be an official launch at 
Gloucester Growth Hub on May 21st 2019.

5.3 Members questioned the remit and engagement of the Gloucestershire 
Nature Partnership. There was concern this was not made clear in the 
morning’s presentation and members requested a brief to explain the 
statutory position of the Partnership.

ACTION: MIKE DAWSON

5.4 There was a discussion about how the ‘Green Infrastructure Pledge’ sits with 
the ‘Barriers to Development Action Plan’. Officers advised that these two 
documents related to separate actions. The Barriers to Development plan 
was very much looking at the process of making planning applications, and 
trying to make this more simple and consistent for developers. 

Page 3

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=9093&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=9093&Ver=4


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

5.5 A member suggested that it would still be worth considering the impact of the 
Pledge as it may be that one of the issues with the process is applications 
being received, that do not match up to the Pledge and thus being unsuitable 
for development. 

4. FUTURE WORKING OF THE COMMITTEE 

4.1 Simon Harper, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, introduced the scrutiny review that 
has been taking place in recent months.

4.2 Members noted that a Peer Challenge in June 2018 identified the need to 
ensure effective and transparent challenge by reviewing the structure, and 
impact, of the Council’s scrutiny arrangements. 

4.3 Following consideration on 28 September 2018 at the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee, members were invited to attend and participate in 
three workshops led by Ann Reeder from the Centre for Public Scrutiny.

4.3 The Committee heard that a number of key principles had been identified 
during the workshops, including:

 The need for ‘parity of esteem’ between executive and scrutiny 
members. The executive should be open to scrutiny, recognising that 
this relies on effective working relationships and trust on both sides.

 Scrutiny committees should be non-political and constructively 
challenge the ‘issues’ and outcomes, rather than act as a mechanism 
for scoring political points.

 Effective scrutiny does not act as a rubber stamp but rather needs to 
set its own agenda. This means that scrutiny should not be directed 
by the Cabinet or full Council.

4.4 A new draft scrutiny structure was outlined to the Committee. Members 
heard the current suggestion was to merge this Committee with the 
Environment aspect of the Environment and Communities Committee, with a 
new Communities Committee being established.

4.5 It had been the view of members that infrastructure and environment issues 
sat neatly together; it was seen to be rare when members could discuss one, 
without mentioning the other. This suggestion was also seen as a positive for 
this Committee as it would widen its remit and strengthen its standing.

4.6 Some members expressed concern that when joining two Committees with 
large agendas, there was always a risk that one would begin to take 
precedent over the other. In response, members were advised this risk had 
been recognised but ultimately it would come back to effective work planning 
by the Committee to make sure this didn’t happen.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

4.7 There were also views expressed in support of the potential new 
arrangement. Some members had always felt this Committee struggled to 
extend its remit within narrow terms of reference. 

4.8 The Committee had a lengthy discussion regarding the role of co-opted 
district members if this suggestion was implemented, as well as any potential 
impact on the Intra-Authority Agreement signed between GCC and the 
district councils on the creation of this joint committee.

4.9 Members were advised that this suggested structure was still in draft form 
and it is due to be debated at full Council on 27th March 2019. Once the 
County Council had agreed a way forward, there would be further 
consultation with the district leaders to ascertain a procedure going forward, 
if required.

7. WORK PLAN 

7.1 Members first discussed further scrutiny of Vision 2050, specifically in 
relation to the Cotswold Water Park. It was advised that at the moment, the 
district councils and GCC are facilitating further discussions on the ‘big six 
ideas’. As these discussions are still live, it was suggested Vision 2050 
would not be a timely agenda item for the next Committee meeting. It was 
therefore agreed a short update report would be circulated to members in the 
meantime.

ACTION: MIKE DAWSON

7.2 The Committee requested an agenda item on ‘Future of the High Street’ in 
light of the Government funding applications which were due in from each 
district by 22nd March 2019. Members agreed that each district can 
feedback to the Committee on their bids at the next Committee meeting in 
June 2019.

7.3 It was advised that the Local Industrial Strategy is due to be published by 
March 2020, and therefore it would be useful for the Committee to look at 
this at their meeting in September 2019.

7.4 The Chair suggested it may be useful for the Committee to have a refresher 
on the role of the GFirst LEP, as well as an updated list from the LEP and 
GCC officers on potential areas that the Committee may wish to consider in 
the coming year. Members agreed if they had a list of topics with crucial 
timings on decisions etc. this would be very helpful to have alongside future 
work planning.

ACTION: MIKE DAWSON/GFIRST LEP

7.5 It was also recognised by the Committee that once the Council is clear on 
the recommendations for the scrutiny review, it would be useful to have a 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

separate work planning meeting with officers, under any new arrangements 
which may arise out of the review.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 15:43.

Page 6



P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



David Owen

Chief Executive

@CEOGFirst

P
age 8



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Sm0L_OGqKk8&t=163s

P
age 9



2011

38

£101.7m

£37m

£500m

P
age 10



Key Strategic Areas

P
age 11



Business Groups

VISITOR ECONOMY & TOURISM RETAIL & THE 

HIGH STREET

ENERGY
CYBER TECH CONSTRUCTION &

INFRASTRUCTURE

BUSINESS &

PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES

BANKING &

FINANCE

BUSINESS 

MEMBERSHIP 

GROUP

AGRI FOOD & RURAL ADVANCED ENGINEERING 

& MANUFACTURING

P
age 12



P
age 13



P
age 14



P
age 15



The Government’s Industrial Strategy White Paper identified five foundations to drive 
productivity. They are:

• Place

• Ideas and Innovation

• People

• Business Environment

• Infrastructure

P
age 16



Agree document with 

Government 

Secure stakeholder 

endorsements

Develop interventions 

Engage Whitehall 
Departments

Publish evidence

Consult and draft  

Develop and test 

priorities with 

stakeholders 

Further analysis of 

evidence as needed 

Review available 

evidence

Call for new evidence 

Early engagement 

activities

Establish the approach 

and resources 

Plan engagement 

activities

Jan – March

Local Industrial Strategy for Gloucestershire

Scope

Gather

evidence

Prioritise

Draft

Finalise

March – May May – July July – Oct Oct –

P
age 17



P
age 18



Gloucestershire Joint Economic Scrutiny Committee

4 September 2019

Report: Towards a Local Industrial Strategy for Gloucestershire

Presented by: David Owen, Chief Executive, GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership

Background

As part of its modern Industrial Strategy, the government aims to agree Local Industrial Strategies 
(LISs) with all parts of England by March 2020. LISs will guide future action and investment, locally 
and nationally, to improve productivity. They are not bidding documents or project pipelines. They 
will be agreed with Mayoral Combined Authorities where relevant, and Local Enterprise Partnerships 
everywhere else. Gloucestershire is in the final wave (Wave 3) of LEPs working with government on 
their LISs, with a March 2020 target for publication. LISs for the West Midlands, Greater Manchester, 
the West of England, Oxfordshire, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, Buckinghamshire and South 
East Midlands (the Oxford-Cambridge Arc LEPs) have been published to date.

Process

The process can be broadly outlined as follows:

Brainstorming: This kicked off in 2018 with two meetings of a LIS ‘Vision Group’ comprising a range 
of stakeholders from the public, private and third sector in Gloucestershire, and two LEP Board 
strategy away days. From these emerged some key themes and ideas for further development.

Evidence gathering: There was an open call for evidence March to May 2019 – we received over 270 
pieces of evidence, both quantitative and qualitative, building a rich picture of the county’s strengths 
and weaknesses and the views of various stakeholders. Alongside this we commissioned an Evidence 
Baseline report, bringing together the latest statistical data available under the 5 foundations of 
productivity (Ideas, People, Business Environment, Infrastructure and Places). We have also run an 
extensive youth engagement programme, with over 5000 survey responses gathered from young 
people aged 14-25. 

To ensure our LIS is based on sound evidence we have a Challenge Panel with involvement from 
government, academia, LEP peers and local leaders. The Panel meets at three key points in the 
process (June, September and October) to provide feedback and advice.

Targeted stakeholder engagement: Over the summer we have met with all of Gloucestershire’s local 
authorities, the Gloucestershire Strategic Planning Coordinator, Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust and 
local Nature Partnership, as well as officials across public sector bodies representing transport, 
health and well-being. We have also engaged with our Business Groups including a dedicated LIS 
meeting of the Cyber Business Group. We have tested an emerging set of priorities with them and 
there has been broad agreement on these. The priorities are:

 Cyber-tech
 Digital
 Green
 Agri-tech

Page 19

Agenda Item 5

https://www.wmca.org.uk/media/3094/west-midlands-local-industrial-strategy-single-page.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greater-manchester-local-industrial-strategy?utm_source=a0f4c804-868a-476a-a185-95ce4cc4b23f&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=immediate
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/west-of-england-local-industrial-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/oxford-cambridge-arc-local-industrial-strategies


 City-region
 Flexible working

A strong inclusive growth theme also cross-cuts the strategy, ensuring that all communities within 
the county have access to the opportunities that will be created by the LIS.

LIS drafting: Based on all the evidence and intelligence gathered, we have produced a draft LIS which 
we will launch for consultation at our Annual Review on 19 September. The draft aims to dovetail 
with other existing and emerging strategies including the Local Transport Plan, Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, Joint Core Strategy, and the Gloucestershire Sustainable Energy Strategy, reflecting shared 
ambitions and synergies across the county.

Consultation: The draft LIS will be launched online on 19 September, along with a set of consultation 
questions. Open consultation will close on 31 October 2019. Drop-in sessions will be held in Growth 
Hubs, with bookable slots, to discuss the strategy with us. All of our Business Groups will meet to 
discuss and give their feedback on the draft LIS between September and November and there will be 
other opportunities for key stakeholders to engage.

Dialogue with government will also take place based on the draft LIS, developing it further, agreeing 
priorities and joint areas of activity, working towards a jointly agreed document by March 2020.

Governance

The LEP Board acts as the Steering Group for the LIS. An Evidence Base Review Group and Task and 
Finish Group were set up to drive the work, with involvement of LEP, government and 
Gloucestershire County Council officials. A wider group of Evidence Base associates from across local 
academia and local authorities also fed into the Evidence Base development. These groups have now 
been amalgamated for the remainder of the LIS process working with government towards an 
agreed LIS.

Joint working

Cyber-tech: We are part of a ‘Cyber Valley’ partnership with Swindon and Wiltshire, the Marches 
and Worcestershire LEPs. Together we produced a Science and Innovation Audit looking at the scale, 
impact and opportunities of the cyber security sector across the 4-LEP region. Building on this, we 
will agree a shared view of how the region can collaborate to grow the cyber-tech sector, to be 
agreed with government and reflected in the 4 LISs.

‘Great Western Powerhouse’: With other LEPs and councils, we are exploring an emerging 
collaboration being promoted as the ‘Great Western Powerhouse’ – stretching roughly from 
Swindon to Swansea, including Gloucestershire. This is being described in a report by Metro 
Dynamics as ‘a powerhouse waiting to happen, with significant economic scale and shared sectoral 
and innovation strengths.’ There may be opportunities within our LIS to promote shared ambitions 
across this geography on, for example, infrastructure (linking with the Western Gateway Sub-
national Transport Body), internationalisation, innovation and inclusive growth.

Agri-tech: With government we will explore opportunities to collaborate with other LEPs who are 
prioritising agri-tech. This will help businesses to exploit market opportunities in the sector, link 
innovators to partners and funding, and avoid any unhelpful duplication.

Page 20



Director’s Report, Communities & Infrastructure - Scrutiny Committee Report

September 2019

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.  

1.0 Decisions

1.1     Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:

 Civil Parking Debt Enforcement Contract (Between 14 August and 23 August 2019)
 Adoption of a Waste Tipping Away Policy (9 October 2019 Cabinet)
 Gloucestershire Local Transport Plan Review – Public Consultation (18 December 

2019 Cabinet)

1.2 For consideration at the Cabinet CoMT Meeting 2 December 2019:
 Gloucestershire Local Transport Plan Review

2.0 Highways update

2.1 Highways Contracts 
 In general the highways contracts are bedding in well.  It is intended to seek 

ISO44001 accreditation for collaborative working over the coming year.

 The first quarter performance figures for defect repair are lower than target and 
although it was anticipated that time would be required to fully mobilise the new 
contract, analysis identified a number of issues which have impacted on 
performance.  An action plan was put into place as soon as issues were identified 
and performance is steadily improving.

 The Highways Skills Academy has started work on identifying areas of overlapping 
interest and benefit for skills, training and apprenticeships.  From September there 
will between 8-10 apprentices working in the highways business across partners.

 Work on preparing the re-tender of the structural maintenance contract from April 
2020 has continued.  It is programmed to go to the market in Autumn 2019.

2.2 £150m Highways Improvement Programme 
 The programme continues to be delivered on schedule and the re-profiling of the 

expenditure has been agreed in order to be able to accelerate the delivery and 
provide more network resilience through the earlier delivery of some significant and 
high impact schemes.

2.3 A40 West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Schemes/ Cyber Business 
Park

 Project remains on track with the business case development ongoing for Phase 1 
and 2 (Arle Court/Golden Valley A40).  The Phase 1 and 2 business case is 
scheduled for considered by the LEP board in December 2019.

 AMPS have completed the purchase of the two properties adjacent to Arle Court 
roundabout.

Page 21

Agenda Item 6

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30113&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28101&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30016&Opt=0


 Highways England liaison continues regarding respective work programmes for A40 
and Comms strategies are being shared and aligned.  

2.4 A419 junction improvements (Stonehouse)
 Works are currently progressing at Chipmans Platt Roundabout.  Highway Capacity 

Improvements works are expected to be completed at Chipmans Platt Roundabout 
in early Autumn and will recommence at Oldends Lane.  The works will move 
sequentially eastwards with works expected at Downton Road and Horsetrough 
Roundabout in late Autumn 2019.  Works are currently expected to be completed 
for the entire scheme in Spring 2020. 

2.5 A38 Cross Keys roundabout (Hardwicke) 
 Construction progress has continued on target with works due to be completed in 

Autumn 2019.
2.6 A35 Cycle Scheme (Cheltenham to Bishop’s Cleeve)

 Additional funding will be necessary to undertake the majority of construction works 
and an Expression of Interest has been submitted to the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth: Capital Investment Pipeline.  The project team are working towards 
meeting with Jockey Club and GWSR to present latest design and seek approval 
for continuation of the scheme – specifically in relation to the acceptance of the 
bridge design across rail line.

2.7 B4063 / A40 Highways England Cycling Scheme – Cheltenham to Gloucester
 Highways England continues to progress the design of the £3.6million cycle 

improvements scheme.  Preliminary design is now complete and engagement is 
being undertaken with relevant MP’s (Richard Graham, Alex Chalk and Laurence 
Robertson), subsequently proposals will be shared with user groups and public drop 
in events will be held.  It is anticipated that procurement and construction will be 
programmed between June 2020 and March 2021 to align with Highways England’s 
RIS2 funding stream.  The scheme will be delivered over a number of phases.  
GCC Officers continue to work with Highways England and a legal agreement now 
in place to formalise responsibilities. Regular progress meetings will be scheduled 
to provide greater programme certainty, input into the detailed design and to ensure 
stakeholders are kept informed.  

3.0 Strategic Infrastructure Update

3.1 A417 Missing Link
 Highways England has commenced discussions with the Planning Inspectorate, 

ahead of submitting the planning application in Spring 2020.

 GCC has been asked to respond to the scoping opinion for the Environmental 
Statement that will accompany the planning application, as well as the statement of 
community consultation.

 Various working groups are meeting on a regular basis including the Stakeholder 
group, environmental group and cycling, walking and horse riding group.

Page 22



3.2 M5 Junction 10 – Housing Infrastructure Fund Bid
 The J10 HIF bid site visit and assessment meeting took place on 11 July 2019.  

Overall the day was viewed as positive by Homes England and their assessors and 
it began a period of further assessment questions that at the time of writing are still 
underway. Four rounds of questions have so far been received and responded to.

 It is now understood that Homes England are aiming for an ‘end of year’ decision 
regarding the J10 scheme, and not a decision at the end of October as previously 
stated.  This continues the time that GCC are progressing with scheme 
development ‘at risk’.  One of the conditions of the HIF funding is that all successful 
schemes must have construction completed by end of March 2024.

3.3 M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch)
 The Western Gateway Sub National Transport Body (WGSNTB) submitted a 

package of regional schemes to Government in July 2019.  One of the schemes 
selected by the SNTB as a priority was the M5 J9/A46 scheme and GCC prepared 
and submitted a Pre-Strategic Outline Business Case (Pre-SOBC) to the WGSNTB.  
A Strategic Outline Business case (SOBC) will be prepared for the next stage of the 
bidding process, which will be submitted in December 2019.  

3.4 Chepstow Transport Improvements
 GCC and Monmouthshire County Council jointly funded the Stage 1 WelTAG report 

which appraised transport options for the town.  
 GCC promoted the Chepstow Bypass to the Western Gateway Sub-national 

Transport Body (WGSNTB) with the aim of the scheme being funded through the 
Department for Transport’s Large Local Majors delivery programme.  However, the 
WGSNTB considered the scheme proposal not sufficiently developed to provide 
assurance of a construction start date before 2025 (a requirement of the funding 
stream).  The WGSTB recognised the complexity of the scheme in terms of 
achieving planning permission within the funding window and securing a joint 
funding package with Transport for Wales. Despite not being prioritised there is now 
recognition of the scheme at a Sub-national level and the bypass scheme has now 
been identified within a future pipeline of schemes for funding consideration post 
2025.

 GCC will continue to engage at both an officer and member level to support the 
process of identifying a robust transport solution for Chepstow.  

3.5 Improved rail connectivity
 The 1st Phase of the Rail Strategy has been commissioned and will focus on 

identifying quick wins that can be delivered in the short-term outside Network Rail’s 
Control Period investment process.  The report will also identify larger scale 
investment requirements to support future growth.  These improvements would be 
considered in more detail in the 2nd Phase of the Rail Strategy.  The outputs from 
Phase 2 would then be used to lobby Network Rail to influence investment 
decisions made for Control Period 7 (2024-2029) and Control Period 8 (2029-2034).    

 In July at a meeting with Network Rail and Great Western Railway it was confirmed 
that no infrastructure interventions were required for the MetroWest Phase 2 
Gloucester extension to operate.  It was also indicated that it is very likely that a 
hourly direct service to London from Cheltenham/Gloucester will be included in the 

Page 23



December 2019 timetable change.  To ensure this service improvement is included, 
it is important to continue to lobby the DfT.  A letter has been sent to the new 
Secretary of State for Transport Grant Shapps seeking his support for this 
improvement.

 In July officers from those authorities in the Western Gateway Sub-national 
Transport Body met with Network Rail to discuss regional priorities and 
enhancements to the Bristol to Birmingham rail corridor was identified as a one of 
the key priorities.  Work on progressing a regional rail strategy will commence in the 
Autumn 2019.

3.6 Digital connectivity
 An Industry Engagement Day on the 28th August 2019 has been planned, to 

showcase the key strategic opportunities for private sector suppliers to invest and 
deliver a full fibre network.  

3.7 Local Plan making
 The Minerals Local Plan (MLP) Examination Hearing Sessions took place on 11th 

and 12th June 2019.  At the close of the Hearing sessions the Planning Inspector 
recommended Main Modifications to the MLP.  Main Modifications to the MLP must 
be subjected to SA, HRA and undergo (at least 6-weeks) public consultation. 
Consultation commenced on Main Modifications (including SA and HRA) on the 16th 
July 2019 and will close on the 11th September 2019.  In late September / early 
October 2019 representations to the Main Modifications MLP consultation will be 
sent to the Planning Inspector.  After review of the Main Modifications consultation 
the Planning Inspector will decide whether to close the MLP Examination and 
prepare the final Inspector’s Report.

 Gloucestershire’s Local Transport Plan (LTP) was adopted in 2016 and is currently 
under review.  Key milestones for the interim review are as follows:
o ESC and GEGJC September 2019
o GCC Cabinet December 2019
o Formal Public Consultation early 2020
o Revised LTP to go to ESC and GEGJC in Spring 2020
o Revised LTP to go to GCC Cabinet in Summer 2020
o Adoption by full Council in Autumn 2020

 Work on undertaking a full update of the LTP will commence from 2021 to take 
account of the future land allocations and updated transport strategies identified 
through the Local Plans review process.  It is anticipated that the updated document 
will be adopted in 2023 and have a revised plan horizon to 2041.

3.8 Lead Local Flood Authority
 A new land agent has been appointed to cover compensation phase of the Priors 

and Oakley Flood Alleviation Scheme to collectively agree remedial works and 
future maintenance.  An initial consultation with Legal has commenced to agree a 
compensation package. Officers will pursue remedial works in advance of 
compensation agreement.

Page 24



4.0 Community Infrastructure Update

4.1 Cheltenham Transport Plan 
 The Experimental Traffic Order (ETO) consultation ends on 3rd December 2019.  

CBC has agreed to take a Cabinet decision clarifying its position in advance of the 
TRO Committee in early December. GCC, as Highway Authority will then have to 
make a decision about the future of Boots Corner, following on from CBC’s Cabinet 
decision and the TRO Committee’s recommendation.  Our constitution and 
precedent point to this being a Key Decision taken by Cabinet.  However as there is 
no Cabinet meeting between 4th December and 29th January a special Cabinet 
meeting may be required as the ETO expires on 28th December. 

 Further detailed traffic monitoring will to be undertaken in September, this is the first 
neutral survey period since the commencement of the amended ETRO.  It will allow 
a comparison against the pre-CTP 2015 traffic flow data to provide insight into any 
traffic changes across the network as a result of the amended ETROs. Further 
investigation into options for traffic calming on Rodney Road is ongoing.

4.2 Public Transport 
 After the successful implementation of the new park and ride system at Arle Court, 

usage statistics have shown a marked increase in bus passengers.

4.3 Parking
 Officers are working with Tewkesbury BC and Stroud DC to coordinate on street 

and off street car park reviews including shared stakeholder engagement.  On 
street surveys are due to be carried out in Autumn to facilitate future design work.

 The Cheltenham Spa railway car park experimental order, required to provide 
additional on-street long-stay parking during the GWR car park closure, will be 
ongoing for a maximum of six months.  During this time a decision on these 
permanent parking arrangements will need to be made.

 Additional officer resource is being sought to provide extra capacity to accelerate 
the countywide parking review project.  As part of this review, the All Saints area of 
Cheltenham is due to considered later this year.

4.4 Climate Change Strategy
 Work on producing a Climate Strategy and action plan continues at pace and 

remains on schedule for the autumn:
o 17th July - Presentation to Environment Scrutiny
o 18th July - CoMT approved in-year resources of £90k plus MTFS growth bids 

for 1 FTE permanent Climate Change & Air Quality Officer post, 0.5FTE 
permanent Senior Communications Officer post, £1m Climate Change 
‘Fighting Fund’.  The job role descriptions and APRs have been developed 
for the 2 new posts.

o 24th July - Information report presented to Cabinet 
o Draft climate change strategy summary has been developed for public 

consultation
o 21st September – 1st meeting of the Youth Climate Panel

Page 25



4.5 Highways Development Management
 Continuing to receive positive feedback from districts with interim managers 

attending planning committees. Team focusing on clearing backlog of legacy 
developments which have not been adopted.  This will enable us to collect 
considerable fee income and address a source of complaints from residents and 
elected members.

4.6 Promotion of active travel (Thinktravel)
 Work is ongoing to support GCC’s staff travel plan.  Monthly walking and cycling 

events to promote staff sustainable travel have been successfully delivered 
including: the cycle to work scheme; offer of travel advice; first ever social woman’s 
cycle ride as part of the Woman’s cycle festival and the regular walking events are 
regularly attended. 

 Continued delivery of Bikeability programme to 5,000 students (academic year 
2018-19) across the county which exceeds national targets.  School streets and 
Active travel zone solutions will be explored throughout academic year 2019-2020 
with interested schools empowering and enabling the schools and local community 
to be involved in a comprehensive engagement process which is led local 
‘champions’.

 The cycling campaign is planned to be launched on September 20th and will be the 
start of a series of media releases associated with the cycling campaign. 

4.7 Air Quality 

 The Gloucestershire Air Quality and Health Strategy was approved by Health & 
Wellbeing Board in May 2019 and Board members were asked to consider what 
their organisations could do to support this agenda. With a further report, including 
actions, due to be considered by the Board in November 2019 the Partnership met 
in July 2019 to review outline action plans being prepared by three sub-groups 
under the themes of Monitoring & Behaviour Change, Active Travel and Electric 
vehicles & clean fleet. These groups are currently developing these draft action 
plans with more details regarding resources, ownership and milestones.

 It is recognised that many actions that help to improve local air quality align well 
with measures to reduce carbon emissions and tackle climate change. In July 2019 
Cabinet considered a paper on a draft Climate Change Strategy and plans for a 
public consultation during August and September 2019. Working in conjunction with 
the Corporate Management Team members we will consider the anticipated 
resource implications for the county council’s work on air quality and climate change 
together with feedback from the public consultation. The intention is to submit a 
revised Climate Change Strategy for approval to Cabinet in November 2019, when 
we will also have more details of the measures being proposed for inclusion in the 
Air Quality draft action plan.
 

5.0 Waste Update
5.1 Joint Waste Committee 

 Discussions continue with district councils on future waste partnership working with 
the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee ending in December 2019. The funding 

Page 26



and resourcing of the future partnership arrangement is likely to be an issue, with 
some districts appearing reluctant to provide any funding. 

5.2 Energy from Waste Plant
 Commissioning of the Javelin Park EfW plant continues. 

6.0 Library and Registration Update
6.1 Libraries

 Stonehouse Library – Legal negotiations are ongoing.
 Public Sector Mobile: The vehicle has been off the road since March 2019. Regular 

customers have been fully engaged during this period to ensure their needs 
continue to be met.

 Coleford Innovation Lab formally launched in July.  There has been lots of interest 
from other local authorities with a positive story featuring on BBC Radio 
Gloucestershire. Refurbishment work at Gloucester Library will incorporate an 
Innovation Lab providing the second facility in the county.  BEIS have visited G first 
LEP to discuss the Innovation Lab partnership model.  They are particularly 
interested in the links with Libraries and are seeking funding from Government to 
roll out the Innovation Lab model out nationally.

6.2 Law Commission Review
 The Law Commission has been tasked with undertaking a review into marriages.  

Their brief is to look at where marriages can take place, who can deliver a legal 
marriage ceremony and whether Notice of Marriage needs to be given for all 
marriages.  Dependent on the outcome this could have a significant impact on 
Registration income.

Contact Officer
Colin Chick, Strategic Adviser (Communities & Infrastructure)
colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk, 01452 328470

Page 27

mailto:colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Economic Growth Scrutiny Scorecard

Quarter 1 2019/20

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page no.
Key to Symbols 2
Economy, Education & Skills 3

1

P
age 29



Level of
Risk Score

Low 1 - 6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)
Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols - Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 30



Economy, Education & Skills
Cllr Patrick Molyneux

Economic Development

Value of Planning
Agreements signed to
support provision of
Highways &
Education/Libraries (£000)

Bigger is
Better Year to Date £439 £2,160 £8,167 £7,761 £5,383  5 agreements signed this quarter 

Publicly
Reported

% of premises with next
generation broadband
access (NGA) Superfast

Bigger is
Better 92.3 % 92.7 % 93.0 % 94.4 % 95.0 %

Publicly
Reported

% of premises connected
to broadband (Stage 1 -
BT - FTTC)

Bigger is
Better 50.1 % 51.4 % 54.8 % 57.7 % 60.9 %

Publicly
Reported

% of premises connected
to broadband (Stage 2 -
mix of suppliers - ADSL)

Bigger is
Better 32.8 % 33.0 % 33.4 % 36.1 % 36.1 %

Publicly
Reported

Value of Local Growth
Deal funding contracted for
project delivery between
GCC and GFirst

Bigger is
Better

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun-18 Qtr Sep-18 Qtr Dec-18 Qtr Mar-19 Qtr Jun-19 Target Qtr

Jun-19 Comments Qtr Jun-19

Lifelong Learning

No of people accessing the
Adult Education service
undertaking
Apprenticeships

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

39 15 6 25 40
The reported number of starts for the period (40) is higher than the
corresponding period in the previous 3 years (2016/17:  4, 2017/18: 8,
2018/19: 39)

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun-18 Qtr Sep-18 Qtr Dec-18 Qtr Mar-19 Qtr Jun-19 Comments Qtr Jun-19

3

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2019-20

4 September 2019
Hosted at the Growth Hub

18 September 2019
EXTRA: Joint meeting with Environment 

Scrutiny

30 October 2019 
at Stroud District Council

Understanding the GFirst LEP
 How the LEP started
 How funding works
 Review a project cycle

Outcome: To decide how to improve scrutiny of the 
LEP going forward

Local Transport Plan
District Issues and Priorities

(Stroud)

To include: Climate change & spatial 
planning items

Local Industrial Strategy

Quarter 1 2019/20 Performance Report

20 November 2019 26 February 2020
at Gloucester City Council

18 March 2020

Digital Connectivity District Issues and Priorities
(Gloucester)

To include: Future of the High Streets item

Review of local meetings

Outcome:  to produce recommendations to 
the Joint Committee

Update on Vision 2050 boards update Social mobility

Quarter 2 2019/20 Performance Report Quarter 3 2019/20 Performance Report

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7



POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Business Rate Pooling 6 Engaging with the 16 to 50 year old age group

2 National Policy Development (including industrial 
strategy)

7 Geographical context of the ‘South West of 
England’

3 Infrastructure and Density 8 Apprenticeship Update

4 Housing (incorporating a review of potential 
changes to the Joint Core Strategy

9 Improvements to the rail network infrastructure 
for Gloucestershire – feasibility of light rail 
network

5 Transportation Links Public Transport

P
age 34


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Understanding the GFirst LEP
	5 Local Industrial Strategy
	6 Director's Report
	Economic Growth Scrutiny Q1 19.20

	7 Work Plan

